IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

SID J. WHITE

JUN 27 1994

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chitef Deputy Clerk

SUPREME CT. CASE NO. 83,870

B۲

DCA CASE NO. 93-1891

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

JOHN D. POLSON,

Respondent.

Petitioner,

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FIFTH DISTRICT

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

SEAN K. AHMED ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER Florida Bar Number 0937673 112 Orange Avenue, Suite A Daytona Beach, Florida 32114 Phone: 904/252-3367

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On February 9, 1993, the Office of the State Attorney filed an information charging the Petitioner with aggravated stalking. (R 8) The defense filed a motion to dismiss the charges, arguing that the stalking statute, Section 784.048, Florida Statutes, is unconstitutionally vague and overbroad. (R 10) On April 26, 1993, the trial court heard arguments concerning the motion and on July 29, 1993, the trial court denied the motion. (R 27, 47, 75-80)

On July 29, 1993, the Petitioner entered a plea of nolo contendere to the lesser included offense of disorderly conduct and explicitly reserved the right to appeal the court's ruling on the motion to dismiss. (R 74, 81-83)

The Petitioner appealed the trial court's order concerning the motion to dismiss to the Fifth District Court of Appeal. (R 86) The parties briefed the issue of the stalking statute's constitutionality and the District Court affirmed the trial court's order by its decision issued May 27, 1994. (See

1

Appendix A to this brief.) The Petitioner filed in the District Court a notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court on June 14, 1994.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The District Court's opinion paired this case for review with its earlier decision in <u>Bouters v. State</u>, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D678 (Fla. 5th DCA March 25, 1994), <u>jurisdiction pending</u>, No. 83,558 (Fla. 1994). In both <u>Bouters</u> and this case the Fifth District Court held that the stalking statute is not unconstitutionally vague. The Petitioner submits that the statute should be held void for vagueness and overbreadth, and that it violates substantive due process in that it sweeps plainly innocent conduct protected by the First Amendment within its broad prohibition. The Petitioner requests this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and to review the Fifth District Court's decision in this case.

ARGUMENT

THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISION IN THIS CASE IS PAIRED FOR REVIEW WITH A CASE THAT EXPRESSLY DECLARES A STATE STATUTE CONSTITUTIONALLY VALID.

The District Court in this case affirmed per curiam the trial court's order dismissing the motion to dismiss and holding the stalking statute constitutional. The Fifth District's per curiam opinion in this case consists of a citation to the Fifth District's earlier decision in <u>Bouters v. State</u>, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D678 (Fla. 5th DCA March 25, 1994), <u>jurisdiction pending</u>, No. 83,558 (Fla. 1994). In <u>Bouters</u> the Fifth District held that the term "harass" in the stalking statute is not unconstitutionally vague, and that the statute as a whole passes constitutional muster. (See Appendix B to this brief) The District Court's opinion paired this case for review with <u>Bouters</u>. <u>See Jollie v.</u> <u>State</u>, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

The stalking statute makes it a crime to "willfully and maliciously harass" or to "willfully and maliciously follow" another person. The statute defines "harassment" as a course of conduct directed at a specific person which causes substantial emotional distress in that person and which serves no legitimate purpose. The question of the stalking statute's validity has been litigated in a number of cases statewide. <u>Cf. Pallas v.</u> <u>State</u>, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D988 (Fla. 3rd DCA May 3, 1994) (upholding statute) with <u>State v. Knodel</u>, 1 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 542 (Fla. Escambia Cty. Ct.September 2, 1993) (invalidating

4

statute; "follow" vague) and <u>State v. Caraway</u>, 1 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 407 (Fla. Hernando Cty. Ct. May 12, 1993) (invalidating statute; "harass vague). The Petitioner submits that the statute is unconstitutionally vague and overbroad, and that it violates substantive due process in that it sweeps plainly innocent conduct protected by the First Amendment within its broad prohibition. The Petitioner requests this Court to exercise its discretionary review and to review the Fifth District Court's decision in this case.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing cases, authorities and policies, the Petitioner requests this Honorable Court to accept jurisdiction of this case.