INTRODUCTION 

The P e t i t i o n e r ,  JOHN D. POLSON, was the Appellant below. 

The Respondent, the STATE OF FLORIDA, was t h e  Appellee below. 

The p a r t i e s  will be referred to as t h e y  stand before t h i s  Court. 

The symbol "A" will designate t h e  Appendix to this brief. 
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND -- FACTS 

The Respondent accepts the Petitioner's statement of the 

case and facts as a substantially accurate account of t h e  

proceedings below. 
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QUESTION PRESENTED 

WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION 
HEREIN WHERE THE DISTRICT COURT SPECIFICALLY 
UPHELD THE VALIDITY OF SECTION 748,048(3), 
FLORIDA STATUTES. 
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SuMMllRY OF THE ARGUMENT 

The Fifth District held t h a t  Florida’s Stalking Statute is 

constitutional. Although t h i s  Court has discretionary 

jurisdiction herein, the State submits that t h i s  Court  should not 

exercise it at this time since the court has accepted 

jurisdiction in Bouters v. State, Case No. 83,558, 
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ARGUMENT 

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT ACCEPT JURISDICTION 
HEREIN WHEN THE DISTRICT COURT QF APPEAL 
SPECIFICALLY UPHELD THE VALIDITY OF SECTION 
7 4 8 . 0 4 8 ( 3 ) ,  FLORIDA STATUTES. 

This Court has the discretionary jurisdiction to hear cases 

where the District Court  specifically held a statute 

constitutional. Rule 9.030(2)(A)(i) Fla. R. App. P. However, 

the State submits t h a t  this Court should not exercise its 

jurisdiction herein. At t h i s  time t h i s  Court has already 

accepted Bouters v. State, Case No. 83,558 on the same issue. 

Therefore, in the interest of judicial economy this Court should 

defer ruling on jurisdiction until it decides t h e  Bouters case. 
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CONCLUSION 

Based on t h e  foregoing, Respondent requests t h i s  C o u r t  to 

decline to exercise its discretion at t h i s  time, 

Respectfully submitted, 

ROBERT A. B U T T E R W O d  

Assistant Attorney General 
Florida Bar No. 0239437 
Office of the Attorney General 
Department of Legal A f f a i r s  
4 0 1  N.W. 2nd Avenue, Suite N921 
Post Office Box 013241 
Miami, Florida 33101 
(305) 377-5441 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION was furnished by 

mail to SEAN K. AHMED, Attorney for Petitioner, 112 Orange 

Avenue, Suite A ,  Daytona B e a c h ,  Florida 32114 on this 

J u l y ,  1994. 
f 

Assistant Attornby General 

mls/ 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF A P P E A L  OF THE STATE OF F L O R I D A  F IFTH DISTRICT JANUARY TERM 1994 

JOHN 0. POLSON, 

NOT FINAL UNTIL THE TIME EXPIRES 
TO FILE REHEARING MOTION, ANDt 
1F FLED, DISPOSED OF, 

Appell an t  , 

Case No. 93-1891 V .  

STATE OF FLORIDA, 

Appel 1 ee. 
I 

Opinion f i l e d  May 2 7 ,  1994 

Appeal from the Ci rcu i t  Cour t  
f o r  Semi no1 e County , 
Alan A .  Dickey, Judge. 

James B. Gibson, Publ ic  .Defender and 
Sean K. Ahmed, A s s i s t a n t  Publ ic  
Defender, Daytona Beach f o r  Appel lant .  

Robert A .  But te rwor th ,  Attorney General, 
Tal lahassee and Michael J .  Neimand, 
Assistant Attorney General ,  Parker D.  
Thomson and Carol A.  Licko,  Spec ia l  Assistant 
Attorneys General ,  Miami, f o r  Appellee. 

PER C U R I A M .  

A F F I R M E D ,  - See Bouters v .  S t a t e ,  19 F la .  L .  Weekly 0678 ( F l a .  5 t h  

D C A ,  March 2 5 ,  1 9 9 4 ) .  

C O B B ,  S H A R P ,  W .  , and T H W P S O N ,  J J .  , concur.  

APPENDIX "A" 

* *  
* I  

- -  

, .A . , .. 



. Dl THE DIS'EXLLL' CGUFU' OF AFPEAL GF T€E STUX L& F7DUDA 

FIFTH DISTRICT JANUARY TERM 1994 

a 
SCOTT BOUTERS, 

NOT FlNAL UNTIL THE TIME EXPIRES 
TO FILE REHf3RING MOTION, AND, 
IF FILED, DISPOSED OF. 

Appel 1 ant 

V .  CASE NO.: 93-504 

STATE OF FLORIDA, > 

Appellee. > 

I 

Opinion f i l e d  March 25, 1994 

Appeal from the Circui t  Court  
fo r  Orange County, 
Richard F .  Conrad, Judge. 

James 6. Gibson, Public Defender, 
and S.  C .  Van Voorhees, Assistant Public 
Defender, Daytona Beach f o r  Appe7 lan t .  

Robert A.  Butterworth , Attorney General , 
Tall ahassee , and Mi chaei J . Neimand A s s i  stan 

t torney General, Parker D. Thomson, Special ,  
4 5 . s i - t  a n t  Attorney General, and Carol A. Lic 

Special Assistant Attorney General, Miami, 
for  Appellee. 

PE3 CURIAM. 
TL -,,*.I1 
i l ie appc I a n t  , S c ~ t t  k i i t z i - 5  , was ciiai-ged w i t h  t h e  G ~ ~ E A S ~  o f  aggravated 

stalking pursuanr: t o  section 784.048(3) , Florida S ta tu tes  (Supp. 1992) , known 

as the Florida S t a l k i n g  Law. He moved t o  dismiss on the ground t h a t  such 

s t a tu t e  i s  facially unconstitutional because o f  vagueness and overbreadth.  

Following denial o f  t ha t  motion,  he pled nolo contendere and then f i l e d  the 

instant appeal .  Without belaboring the  issue,  we f i n d  the aforesaid s t a t u t e  

t o  be f ac i a l ly  cons t i tu t iona l ,  and basically agree with the analysis o f  t h a t  

. .  - . -  .-. . -.. - 

, ..-. . . -. - - - . . . . . . . . - - -  - _  - - _ _  - ~ . _ 



s t a t u t e  as found i n  S t a t e  v.  Pallas, 1 Fla .  L. Weekly Supp. 442 (F la .  1 1 t h  

Cir. June 9, 1993). In respect t o  the argument ' t ha t  the definition of  the 

@rd "harasses" i n  subsection ( l ) ( a )  o f  the s t a t u t e  is vague because o f  the 

nonspecific term "serves no legitimate purposer'' we agree w i t h  the analysis in 

State v. Bosrie,  1 Fla.  L. Weekly Supp.  465, 466 (Fla.  Erevard County Ct. 

June 22, 1993),  t h a t  the s t a t u t e ,  read i n  i t s  entirety, renders t h a t  

particular phrase superfluous, hence, harmless. 

AFF I RMED . .. 

DAUKSCH, COBB and GRIFFIN, JJ., concur.